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  1 This is a pseudonym.
  2 The indictment charged Kathleen Stegman with five counts 

of tax evasion, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 7201, and 
Kathleen Stegman and John Doe with participating in a 
Klein conspiracy, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 371.  

  3 U.S. v. Jackson, et al., 3:16-cr-00031-GMG-MJA (N.D.W.V.).
  4 The specific charges in Jackson were as follows:  fifteen 

counts of mail fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1341; 
money laundering conspiracy, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1956(h); eighteen counts of money laundering, 
in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i); eighteen 
counts of engaging in illegal monetary transactions, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1957; and operating an illegal 
gambling operation, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1955.  

  5 U.S. v. Takhalov, 827 F.3d 1307 (11th Cir. 2016); U.S. v. Regent 
Office Supply Co., 421 F.2d 1174 (2d Cir.1970); U.S. v. Starr, 
816 F.2d 94 (2d Cir. 1987).

  6 The charges in U.S. v. Daugerdas, et al., S6 09 Cr. 581 
(S.D.N.Y.) (WHP), were as follows:  (1) conspiracy to 
defraud the Internal Revenue Service through the design, 
marketing and sale of illegal tax shelters, in violation of 18 
U.S.C. Section 371; (2) aiding and abetting the tax evasion 
of various clients, in violation of 26 U.S.C. Section 7201 
and 18 U.S.C. Section 2;  (3) corrupt endeavor to obstruct 
and impede the Internal Revenue laws, in violation of 26 
U.S.C. Section 7212(a) (Paul Daugerdas only); (4) personal 
tax evasion, in violation of 26 U.S.C. Section 7201 (Paul 
Daugerdas only); (5) mail fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1341.   In addition, the government sought 
forfeiture of $180 million.   

  7 Manhattan U.S. Attorney Announces Agreement with BDO 
USA LLP To Pay $50 Million To Resolve Federal Tax Fraud 
Investigations, Press Release issued by the United States 
Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York, June 
13, 2012: 

As BDO has admitted and as alleged in the 
Information:  Between 1997 and 2003, BDO 
participated in a fraud that generated at least 
$6.5 billion in phony tax losses for its clients, which 
resulted in the evasion and attempted evasion of 
approximately $1.3 billion in taxes. Specifically, 
through a group within the firm known as the 
“Tax Solutions Group,” BDO and its co-conspirators 
developed, marketed, sold and implemented illegal 
tax shelter products targeted to wealthy clients with 
expected income or gains exceeding $5 million. 
The Information focuses on two shelters – “Short 
Sale” and “SOS” – which BDO and its conspirators 
concealed from the IRS by: (a) falsely characterizing 
them as “investments,” (b) using false and 
fraudulent correspondence, legal opinion letters, 
consulting agreements, and other documents to 

mask the products and associated fees, (c) filing 
false tax returns on behalf of the clients, and (d) 
providing false information and documents to the 
IRS during the course of BDO’s promoter penalty 
examination and client audits.


